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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA
WESTERN DIVISION

FARM-TO-CONSUMER LEGAL
DEFENSE FUND, et al.,

Plaintiffs,

V. No. C 10-4013-MWB
{ATHLEEN SEBELIUS, Secretary,
Unites States Department of Health
and Human Services, et al,,

Defendants.

AFFIDAVIT OF STEPHEN BEMIS

STATE OF MICHIGAN
COUNTY OF WASHTENAW

Stephen Bemis, being first duly sworn, deposes and gives this Affidavit for the within-described purposes
in the above action pending before this honorable Court.

1) Iam a Member of, and a Founding Board Member and present Board Member of, plaintiff Farm-to-
Consumer legal Defense Fund {*FTCLDF").

2} | am an attorney licensed to practice law in the States of Michigan and llinois {the latter status is
"inactive”), and reside at 6500 Jennings Road, Ann Arbor, MI 48105.

3) During the period February, 2007 through the end of March, 2010 | represented Farmer Ancnymous
who is Amish and whose religion prevents him from active participation in litigation including the instant

case,

4) The representation which | provided to Farmer Anonymous during the referenced period was under
the auspices of FTCLDF in which I utilized the assistance of FTCLDF attorneys who continue to practice
actively on behalf of FTCLDF and its clients, including its prosecution of the instant case.

5) | represented Farmer Anonymous from February, 2007 through the end of March, 2010 against
allegations by defendant Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) concerning interstate shipment of raw
{unpasteurized) milk in final package form for human consumption allegedly in contravention of the
provisions of 21 CFR 1240.61, which regulation is the subject-matier of these proceedings.
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6) At the request of Farmer Anonymous, commencing on March 30, 2010 1 no longer represent him, but
I have obtained the consent of Farmer Anonymous to present this Affidavit summarizing the course of
communications, together with the correspondence which | pursued with the FDA while representing
him concerning FDA’s allegations of violation of 21 CFR 1240.61

7) On March 25, 2010 whiie speaking on the telephone with Melissa Mendoza, Esq., internal counsel to
the FDA, and Steven Barber and Tina Pawlowski from the Detroit District office of the FDA, | confirmed
with Mr. Barber that my previous correspondence with the FDA concerning Farmer Anonymous was in
the possession of the FDA Detroit District Office as a part of the Administrative Record in his case;
consequently, every document which is referred to in this Affidavit has been previously known to
defendant FDA, and the identity of Farmer Anonymous is known to defendant FDA,

8) Farmer Anonymous was sent a Warning Letter by the FDA Detroit District Office in 2007 {“Warning
Letter”} because “Our investigation determined that your firm distributes unpasteurized raw milk and
cream in interstate commerce in finished form for human consumption. Such distribution is a violation
of the PHS Act, 42 U.S.C. §271(a), and the regulation codified in Title 21, Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR}), section 1240.61(a)” The letter goes on to describe the activities of Farmer Anonymous which is
the basis for the allegation of violation: “The regulation prohibits the delivery into interstate commerce
of milk and milk products in final package form for direct human consumption unless they have been
pasteurized. The milk and cream you produce in [name of State redacted] and distribute to Cooperatives
in {name of State redacted] and [name of State redacted] for further distribution to their Co-op
members, is in final package form for direct human consumption.” The letter demanded “action to
correct this deviation and prevent any further recurrence. Failure to make prompt corrections could
result in regulatory action without further notice” [Ait A).

9) On February 21, 2007 FDA's headquarters office in Rockvilie, MD sent a letter to Senator Carl Levin (D-
Mich) responding to his inquiries on my and others’ behalf dated November 3, 2006, reiterating FDA’s
long-term and continuing position in support of 21 CFR 1240.61 and reiterating as well FDA’s long-heid
position that 21 CFR 1240.61 applies to sales in interstate commerce. [Att B]

10) On February 27, 2007 | sent a letter to the Director of FDA's Detroit District Office confirming the
opportunity for Farmer Anonymous and me to meet with the FDA to discuss the allegations contained in
the Warning Letter. With my letter, which was copied to officials in FDA’s headquarters offices, |
enclosed a package of 232 testimonials (together with a summary thereof} concerning the benefits of
raw milk and raw dairy products as perceived by a large group of consumers who obtained milk from
Farmer Anonymous through a herd lease/cow share co-op arrangement. [Att €]

11) On March 6, 2007 Farmer Anonymous, his wife and ! appeared in person at FDA’s Detroit District
Offices and met there at length with District Director Joann Givens, Compliance Branch Director David
Kaszubski, Director of Investigations Keith Jasukaitis, and Compliance Officer Judith Jankowski. As well,
FDA's Brandon Bergman from College Park and Dennis Downer from FDA's Indianapolis office, and
FTCLDF's Peter Kennedy attended via conference telephone. In this meeting we requested that the FDA
rescind the Warning Letier and discontinue enforcement, which request was denied.

12} FDA nevertheless agreed to a two-week extension to permit us to explain more fully the basis for
our request that FDA withdraw the Warning Letter and discontinue its enforcement actions against
Farmer Anonymous and the co-ops which utilized private herd lease/cow share arrangements.

2



Case 5:10-cv-04018-MWB Document 15-4 Filed 06/14/10 Page 3 of 44

13) By letter dated March 20, 2007 co-counsei Pete Kennedy of FTCLDF and | made detailed arguments
to the FDA, in which we presented factuai and legal analysis showing his activities to be outside FDA
jurisdiction, and concluded with our request that FDA rescind the Warning Letter and discontinue
enforcement against these private arrangements. [Att D]

14) On September 17, 2007 FDA responded to our March 20, 2007 request and stated that the request
had been “forwarded to FDA’s Center for Food Safety and Nutrition (CFSAN) for review.” FDA and CFSAN
flatly rejected our request, and closed by stating, “FDA does not support rescinding the Warning Letter
or terminating any follow-up inspection and enforcement action” [Att E]

15} On September 26, 2007 | requested another meeting with FDA’s Detroit District Office [Att ]

16) On October 15, 2007 | cancelled the meeting request and proposed, alternatively, that Farmer
Anonymaous provide labeling of his milk containers compliant with 21 CFR 501.1, based on precedent
with which | had become familiar concerning labeling by which we understood FDA to permit raw milk
moving interstate if it was [abeled as pet food. [Att G} This communication was not responded-to by
FDA.

17) On March 20, 2008 | sent FDA a letter expressing concern that my October 15, 2007 letter had not
been responded-to, particularly in view of then-emerging cases of FDA enforcement action, both civil
and criminal, elsewhere in the country calling into question the pet food precedent upon which we had
relied in the October 15 proposal. [Att H]. This communication was not responded-to by FDA.

18} On March 23, 2010 FDA appeared at the premises of Farmer Anonymous for an inspection pursuant
{o 21 USC 374(a). On March 25, 2010 | spoke with the FDA representatives as noted in paragraph 7
above, and in view of what appeared to be imminent enforcerent action by FDA, Farmer Anonymous
authorized me to propose an agreement to discontinue sending raw milk beyond state lines. [Att 1]

19) The next day March 26, 2010, FDA’s attorney Mendoza replied by asserting that Farmer Anonymous
had “refused to allow FDA investigators to inspect.” Responding to our Fifth Amendment concerns, Ms.
Mendoza made it clear that their investigation was “to determine whether vour client has violated
and/or is violating [the laws]....If violations are found, FDA could initiate regulatory enforcement actions.”
In response to my inquiry whether Farmer Anonymous was the subject of a criminal investigation, she
basically said she didn’t think so, but couldn’t reaily commit the agency one way or the other. In
response to our offer to enter into an agreement to discontinue out of state raw milk shipments in
return for some comfort concerning further enforcement actions, she said fine, but “FDA cannot, in the
context of such a [settlement] decree or otherwise, make commitments regarding any additional legal
action, on its own behalf or that of any other federal or state agencies.” A two-hour deadline was given
to me to respond, which | could not meet, and | asked for time over that weekend during which to
contact my client and obtain his answer. [Att ), K]

20) On Monday, March 28, 2010, in view of what appeared to be certain enforcement consequences, |
responded to Ms. Mendoza stating that | had been authorized by Farmer Anonymous to commit that he

make reference to a press report, later found to have been in error, referring to “campylobacter
positives.” To date, no campylobacter positives have been identified in the milk supplied by Farmer

Anonymous.} | asked Ms. Mendoza to call me to discuss the conduct of an inspection. This
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communication was not answered by FDA, and on the morning of March 29, 2010 the FDA inspected the
premises of Farmer Anonymous.

21} On March 39, 2010 | advised Ms. Mendoza that Farmer Anonymous that morning had asked me to
discontinue my representation of him.

22) Based on my dealings with FDA over the past three years, it is FDA’s interpretation and application of
the law that a farmer who makes raw milk and/or raw dairy products available for distribution across
state lines when those preducts are in final package form and are intended for human consumption is in
violation of 21 C.FR. 1240.61 and 21 C.FR 131,110, even though no administrative, civil or criminal
enforcement action has been taken by FDA against the farmer.

23} | certify that all of the documents attached hereto as Attachments A through L, inclusive, are copies
of the originals and have not been materially altered in any way. | also certify that all of the attachments
are in a file over which { have custody and that all of them were either sent to or sent by the FDA as a
document that was generated in the ordinary course of business of either myself or of the FDA. i also
certify that all of the attachments were generated at or about the time identified by the events depicted

in each attachment.
FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.

T o

Stephen Bemis

Sworn and subscribed before me this day of June, 2010,

4/&% % 4// My Commission Expires: ,;%‘:/é‘ / 5

S IR X g s
Notary public.

STH7E oS Fasrsan
éﬁy/f/f oF L 147V EETIL
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TEFAMIMENT UF P ALY & B MAN SRRV BN ey e gith D e

LERTIFIED MAL Semxd e Jhug Al P shioer
RETHRN REOFID REQUESTED BRI TR R S IR

WARNING LETVER

CET DT Jh

Fobruory ], 2007

e —— e R

U oyl

A pntwpvestigation by the U S Food and Dreg Adnamsiration. the Jadisng Boad of
Annnd Health, amd the Muchigan Deparmizar of Agriculture, has documeraed violations
of e Public Health Servce Act{(PUY Ac and o Foderal sepulation premulgated uader
the PHS At

Crar wwvestigaion defermined that your Fm disteibutes unpastesnzed raw malk and crcam
o ateeniate coromgrce a Gntshed for for human consumption. Such distribntion i @
viclation of the PHS Act 42 US O § 271}, and the repgulation codified o0 Ttk 21

L ode of Fedoral Reguiabons (0VR) seotion 1248 6 Ha)  The regulation probibisg the
delivery mio mtersiate commerce of milk and ik prodocts in finat package form for
direet human constynption uiless they have been pasteunzed. The nulk and cream you
produoce in fadiang and distribute to Ceoporatrees in Michigan and Blinois for faetleer
distribution to their Co op mainbers, s in fimad package formn for disect lmman
consumption. For your mfommtion, we bave eoclosed 2 copy of the regulation 4531w
subhishod by the Foderal Repaster 52 FR 23509 (Aue (0, 987,

(e above ehservaniion s not intonded fo be an allanciusive st of vislations. Itis you
rospornstbility 10 snsure adbersnee with ol requirements of the PHS Actand
smplomenny regalotions. You shoeld Dike promet aotion fo oorrect? thrs deviaton and
preven! any future reewrrencs, Fatdure 10 muke prompt corpeotions gouid reselt m
regulatary pohon withouwt further notice

In addition o the vielatinn abbve, we Dirve severst commments soncermmg the jock of
Fabeding of yvour vaw milk and cresm prodocs. Fist we note that vour mw milk and
crzpn products do not contains labebnmg that specifizs the nome and place of business of
the snanufaciorcr. packer o destobutor (21 OFR 101 3] We also note that vour ravw miik
and ervam produets do 5ot contaln 3 princapal display pacel Boaring a declaration of o
net quantity of portents {23 CFR 101 W05 Lastly, we note that your row mitk and cream
pieadints Bul 1 Yiove Tabels that desture thanr ingredinms 121 CFR 101 4)
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ATT
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Page ?

WL OT6

Pleae pottfy this office @ wining wathn Sfteen {15) werking days of reczipt of this
fetrer o the spegific steps you bave akon 1o corcet the nated vinlations including en
st the recurrence of similar viptatons, I

explination of cach step belimy wikon 1o orev
COPFECIIVE 2000ms €an 5ot be conpleted witiin 13 working days, stawe the 1eoson 1ot the
deiay and ihe fund within which cormections will be completed

Your response should be directed o Jucith A Jankowski Cemphance Officer, ar G
atorve fellorhesd address. 1§ yow have any questions cogarding any wyues in this Jetior
plenne conteel My Jankewskr 2 3153938125

Smcerely.

p o
/{;ﬁfﬁf l'f :
e doann MG
L2 Distriet Datetor
Dletroit Ersene: Offioe

-
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ATTACHMENT B
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C' DEPARIMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SFRVICES

< Fgoﬁ\ wrd Doy Adrrinistation
Rockowlle ML 20857

I e Honersble Carl Levin

Urited States Senator FEB 9 1 2901
177 Michigan Avenue

Room 1860

Distrost, MY 48326

Prear Senator Levim:

Thank vou for the tetter of November 3, 2006, on behalf of your constituents, membeors of the
who cxpressed copcern ahouat the U 3. Food and Drag Administiation’s
(FIXA o1 the Agency) activilics (a enforcing, regulations governing the interstate sale cf raw
mitk and apout FDA's segulatory policy related 1o cow share agreements. We apologize for
our defay in responding,

FDIA, the Centers (or Disease Contro! and Prevention, state pubbe health agencies, as well ag
the Arpenican Medical Assooation and Amencan Academy of Pediatrics, constder raw millcn
public health safery hazard  In addition, FDA wnsiders the cow sharing agreements it has
observed to be an attempl af circumvention of suctien 1240 61 of the Agency’s reguilations
(Titde 21 ofthe Code of Federal Reguladers [CFR] § 1240613 That secton prolubiis e
sale znd distribation in itersizie conunerce of milk in final package form for direct human
cuspsurnption unless it has been pastenrized.

Below are responses to the thres questions in your request

1. Why is the FDA investigating the iR Vil there be sny enforcement
sction as a result?  1f so, please provide information regarding the tmelioe, procedures,
and appeal rights under this process.

FI3A was aleried by the Michigan Department of Agriculture to interstate shipments of raw
mitk inte Michigan fror (R (2050, located in Indhana. Concwimily, te Indisns
Board of Antmal Health was also advised of the sitvation

Becapse of the sigmficant public health concerns associated with raw milk, FDA determined
that en investigation of JJIENNNRNNNNG | (4 be conducted to cosure that the general
public, Including prople hving in Michigan wd Indiana, are protected from the dangers of
AW Y
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Page 2 ~ The Honorable Caxl Levin

Eollowing a iequest from the Michigan Department of Agriculiuie, FDA with the Indiana Board
of Animat Health and the Michigan Department of Agricaliure fointly wnvestigated NGNS
farers, (NN 1 determine the circumstances refated to the production, sale, and
distribution of raw milk and raw milk products in Michigan, Indiana and Hiinois

(e of the results of the investigation was that 2 waming letter dated February §, 2007 was
defivered to AN R -
viglations of the Public Health Service Act (FHS Act), Title 42 of the Uniled States Codde
(18 C)§ 271 (), and 21 CFR § 1240 61 which were documentod during the FDA/State
inspeclion

The wamning letter requests thaid NSNS 011 {y FDA in witting, within 15 working days,
of the specific steps he has taken 1o eorrect the noted violations, inclnding a explanation of cach
step being taken to prevent the recurrence of similar viokations.

2. Has the FDA proviously lnvestipated interstate cow-sharing sgreements?
1f so, please provide examples of the investigations ss well ax the FDA's detersnination i
those Cases,

Yes, FIDA has inveshipaied cases where cowsharing apreements were involved . For exanple,
in December 2005, FDA investigated Dec Creck Farms, in Woodland, Washington, when an
owtbreak of 18 cages of £ cofi O1537-H7 infection, Including two children with Hernolytie Urermie
Syndrome (HUS), was hoked w raw milk in Washington and Oregor. HUS oceurs after an

£ colt OL57HT infecvon of the digestive system and 15 the most comnon Cause of sudden,
shori-term kidrey farhure in chitldren.  FDA detormined that Dee Creek Farens caused 10 be
detiverad info interstate copmumerce nnpasteurized splk in fintshed form Jor hurman consumption
in violation of the PHS Act, 32 US.C § 271 {2y and 21 CFR § 124061 and 15med s wamng
letter fo Dec Creek Farms dated May 2, 2006, FDA was aware that cow-sharmg, was 3 methes)
of Bee Creck Farms® distribution

Another investigation involved Doubie G Farms n Verona,Kentucky  On June 7, 2066,
FPA 1ssucd a warning letter to Double O Fazms because the form was found 1o be
dstributing unpasteurized milk in interstate commerce,  The {inm sent 2 wiitten response
to FDXA stating they would cease interstate shipment of unpasteurized mitk

3. Are there provisiops upder ¥DA regulativns that allew citizens to purchase and
cagsuwme ravw wilk? If so, what are the circumsiances ynder which citizens can or canaat
0 this?

FDA stropgly advises agginst the consumption of raw milk and prohibits the saic of

unpastourized milk and nalk products in intorstate commuoree. States regulite the intrastats sale
of raw mitk  Indiana md Michigan prohibit the sale of raw milk for human consumption
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Fags 3 — The Honorable Carl Levin

Thank you again for contacting us concerning this matter I you have any fusther questions,

please lot us kpow, N

Sincerely,
. 1
_/Z;fg ém o /ﬂ ?M«w‘

Michele Mital
6}21-’ Acting Depuly Assistant Comnmissioner

&

for Legslation

prr “R"

Hog
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ATT ''¢

STEPHEN T. BEMIS
ATTORNEY AT LAW
6504 Jennivgs Road
Aunn Arbor, Michigan 48103
(73d) 994-8496

February 27 2007

foann Givens

Detroit Instrict Direcior
FOAL Detroit District Office
200 River Place

Suite S50

Detroit, Mechipan 48207

ke < .

Blear Ms Givens:

I understand from Pote Kennedy that | may be sble 1o meet with vou In the near future

concernmn g <iotion with

Prior to that meeting | am talong the hbeny of forvarding o vou a package of

iestnonials that vou may find helpful in undersianding some of the background.

Flease be advised, that contaip individualy testimomals may utihze informally the tonms

“huy” and "seli” These and similwr terms do not properly describe the underlving legal
refationship based on formal herd-lease agreemnents and cach members' cow-share agreement. In
every case {(othor than imformad sharing of pick-up duties ammg neighbors who are members),
only coop memburs may obtan raw nulk pursuant to thelr mdividuallv-signed cow-share
agreerents, and 1 any case, we are able 1o grovide duly executed copics of such agresmonts

[ ook forward 1o mecting with vou and your staff and in discussing this and other aspects

of this master

Very truly yours,

T s

STH | ( el § 3Y-AHL Lot ;)

Frclosures

[& 9

Mchelle Mual- FDA (DO
Captain Robert Hepnes — FDA (College Park

Y
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ATT D i

STEPHEN T. BEMIS
Attorney at Law
ZHO0] Van Bom Road
Tavlor, Michigan 18180
S 7265300

March 202007

VIA E-MAIL AND EXPRESS MAIL

Ms. hudith A Jankowski

Compliance Officer

Department of Health and Human Services
LS Food and Drug Administration

5300 River Place

Suite 3900

Detroit, Michigan 48207

RE: Warning Letter 2007-D1-06
R e
Pear Ms Jankowski:

This fetter is our promised written response, following our meeting on March 6, 2007, o the
foregoing Warning [ etter dated February 8, 2007, received by _011 February 12,
2007, We responded verbally to the Warning [ etter at our meeting in yvour offices, at which time
a two week extension was granted within w hzch to submit this expanded written response. Ag we
discuss herein at Jength, we believe the Warning Leiter must be rescinded and further
enforcement action against ] and the co-ops must be
terminated

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

As you know, this case involves three herd-lease agreements entered into by JGG__ .

nswmmrm (collectively, I with three cooperatives
focated out of state ( i Michigan, J R

filinois and B in Michigan) Fach of these
wupuaiwes intumn, is unnpr;sui of a manager and individual members who participate in their
co-op’s herd lease via individually-executed member cow share agreements, to obtain raw milk
and other fuods, and pursuant to which each member agrees to pay an anoual cow share lease fee
which is applied to the annual herd lease agreement and to other operational expenses of the co-

op.

The herd leases entered into between il and the co-ops stipulate a boarding fee expressed as
the sum of $2.00 per 172 galion of milk (84 00 per gallon. subsequently increased by $.23 per
gatton} which cach of the three co-ops has agreed to pay 1o il for its boarding services for the

HETO T2
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Pr'r'r tgb 1

Ms Judith A Jankowsk:
March 20. 2007

Page 2

herd during each year's lease  The parties determined the boarding fee o be a convenient
method o allecate production costs of feeding and caring for the herd. as well as o cover all
labor and equipment required in milking them and storing the products prior to weekly pickups
and defiveries by the co-op managers or their designees  Fach of these Four entities @il and
the three co-op managers) is small. family-owned and family-staffed  In each case. the COOPS
charge additional fees o members to obtain and deliver the milk to the various drop-off
locations. where members take delivery of their milk and 1emit a combined fee per gallon for the
services rendered by each of iR and the co-op ranager

ECONOMIC MODEL FOR THE AGREEMENTS

Fach of these herd-lease and conresponding co-op member cow share agreements is valid,
commercially grounded, and fegal under applicable state and federal law Specifically, cach
herd Jease’s annual fee is based on the estimated slaughter value for such a cow, divided by her
estimated nine year useful life as a mitker, multiplied by the number of cows under the lease. In
other words, the economic model utilized, is that cach year. a co-op pays the pre-agreed lease fee
to obtain dairy products derived from one-ninth of cach cow’s useful production life. Hence. in
the case of JIIR the approximate slaughter value of $300 for a Jersey cow past her mitking vears
18 divided by 9, vielding an annual economiv lease value of $33 33 multiplied by 41 head to
vield $1376. This is the derivation of the annual lease fee of $1383 for a herd of 41-46 head as

reciied in the (N contract
COW SHARES AND THE, LAW
FDAs Interpretations of 21CFR 1240.61 Apply It Only to Sales

I took a public-interest lawsuit culminating in 1987 (Public Citizen vs. Heckler, 653 F Supp
LR29) [Ex A to order the FDA to publish a proposed rule "banning.the interstate sale of all raw
milk and raw milk products " (at page 1242) alter the Agency, presumably for good and certain
reasons, bad delayed taking action for fully 14 years prior As discussed below, this court order
caused the Agency 10 propose a rule which (for reasons we have not been able 10 determine from
the regulatory record) became transformed into much broader language which was issued under
the communicable discase provisions of 42 USC 264(a) and the contaminated food provisions of
the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act at 21 USC 34%a) (1), {3), and 4 and 3‘?1{';{)‘ which we shali
discuss in more detay] below i . * .

‘ ‘.
Although the Agency cites the broad language of 21 CFR 1240 61 in its Waning [ etter, in fact
FDA has up unul this case, utilized its regulation only rarely to issue Warning § etters in cases
other than sales and more significantly. in its own publications and other weitings FDA has
characterized the rule as applying only to sales. For cxample. in a press release issued on March
1,2007 {Ex B, the Agency cited several of its own previous publications. including the
following paragraph from its publication entitled ~Got Milk? Make Sure It’s Pasteurized”
{September-October 2004 Issue) where the words “sate”, “sold” and “sell™ and no others are
used repeatedly to characterize both 21 CFR 1240.61 and applicable state laws:
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¥
ATT "B
Ms Judith AL Jankowskl
March 28,2007

Page 5

The Law

[tis a violation of federal law enforced by the FDA to sell raw milk packaged for consunrer use
across state lines (interstate commerce) But each state regulates the sale of raw milk within the
state (infrastate), and some states allow it to be sold. This means that in some states dairy
operations may sell it 1o tocal retail fhod stores, or 10 consumers directly from the farm or at
agricultural fairs or other community events. depending on the state faw,

In states that prohibit intrastate sales of raw mitk, some people have tried to circemvent the law
by "cow sharing,” or “cow leasing ¥ They pay a fee 10 a farmer 10 lease or purchase part of a cow
in exchange for raw milk, claiming that they are not actually buying the milk since they are purt-
owners of the cow. Wisconsin banned cow-leasing programs after 78 people became infected
with Campylobacter jejuni bacteria in 2001 from drinking unpasteurized milk obtained through
such a program. [Ex C}

Further, as recently as Jast month, in its February 21, 2007 written repiy to Scenator Carl Levin
(D-Michigan), the FDA stated, *That section [referring to 21 CFR 124061 prohibits the sale
and distribution in interstate commerce of milk i final package form for direet human
consumption unless it has been pasteurized ™ The conjunctive construction “sale and
distribution,” is obviously o much narrower construction than the regulation. and the Agency
concludes its letter to the Senator, “T DA . prohibits the sale of unpasteurized milk and milk
products in interstate commerce.”  And again (just as they did in the referenced 2004 broadside
quoted above), the Agency ventures 1o characterize to Senator Levin the state laws: “Indianz and
Michigan prohibit the sale of raw milk for human consumption ™ [Ex D]

senator Levin had written the FDA on November 3, 2006 specificaliy inquiring abou the
Agency's position in its investigation of il and the related Michigan investigation ()M {Ex
E] More than three months later, after the Detroit office issued its Warning Letter to Jilt
S o DA’ Rockyille office issued what one would suspect would be a carefully
prepared answer to the Senator’s questions  There certainly was ample time for review and
correct phrasing for the Ageney to establish, and indeed confirm its severab-years’ position that
21 CFR 1240.61 applies only to sales.

State Law and Administration Apply to Sales Only
Michigan

Michigan s faws contemplate arrangements tor the boarding (Teasing) of cattle (MCL 570 185) as
in the herd-lease and cow shares in this case, und applicable UCC provisions as adopted by
Michigan make clear the distinction between “sale” and “lease” (MCL 440 2106 defines “sale™
MCL 4402102 defines the statute’s applicability to “sales™ of “goods™ MCI 440 2803(h)
defines “goods.” and (j) defines “lease™ and finally, MCL 440 2802 specifies the statute’s
applicability to leases). The definition of lease describes the herd leases here: “a transier of the
right to possession and use of goads for a term in return for consideration. ™ And finally, inthe

i
;
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cited (}) definition of “lease,” the Taw makes it clear that “a sale.. is not a lease.” [eollectively,
Ex F]

since under the [ herd leases and corresponding cow share agreements the goods in question
(raw milk) are subject {0 leases, there are no sales. and consequently, the otherwise-relevant
provisions of the Grade A Milk Law of 2001 (MCL. 288 538 and 288 696) arc not applicable
since they are limited to sales: ~Only pasteurized milk and dairy products shall be offered for
sale or sold, directly or indireetly, to the final consumer " Finally, the definition in MCL

288 475(1) of offering for sale makes it clear. again, that leases are not ncluded as sajes [Ex G
Indeed, in a telephone conversation on February 1, 2007 the writer was advised by Katherine
Fedder, the Director of the Food and Dairy Division of the Michigan Department of Agricuhure
that MDA had obtained an “informal™ opinion substantially to the foregoing effect from the
Michigan Attorney General's office, pursuant to which the Division discontinued issuing
waning letters to cow share operations within Michigan sometime in the 2003-2004 time frame.
Finally, since Michigan statutes contemplate only sales (and not herd lease/cow shares as in this
case), under common law the leasing arrangements are fully legal  Indeed, ina 1937 Supreme
Cort case which is still good Jaw in Michigan, a farmer distributing surplus taw mifk o
neighbors was held not to be delivering milk 10 the public in violation of then-applicable statute,
and the case’s definition ot the public vs. private parties, central {o the case’s finding, is still
instructive in interpreting the essemtially private nature of the lease agreements in the present
situation (People v Powell, 280 Mich. 699 (1937), 273 N. W 371} {Ex H]

Indiana

Indiana has also adopted the UCC, relevant portions of which also make the distinetion, as in
Michigan, hetween lease and sale:

(i) I case™ means a transfer of the right 1o possession and use of goods for a term in return for
consideration. but a sale, including a sale on approval or a sale or return, o1 retention o creation
of & security interest ts not a lease Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, the term
includes a sublease (FC26-1-21103(1() [Ex T}

While sales of raw milk are prehibited in Indiana, in the case of B lcase agreement the
actions (or lack thercof ) of the Indiana Board of Animal Health appear to indicate that the
Agency does not view IR operations as involving sales of raw mitk In fact, despite SN
previous well-known reputation as a top quality Grade A licensee subjeet to Indiana jurisdiction,
when in June. 2004 YNNI« . to discontinue his Grade A operation and began
switching over to raw milk supply under the herd leases, Indiana regulators made no attempt 1o
warn him or advise him agaiost such activity.

We are prepured to demenstrate specific and continuing knowledge by Indiana and F DA
regulators of the raw milk operaticns conducted by S for a period in excess of 2172 vears,
during which time JJIB was permitied to build an invesiment, and a business model. devoted to
and dependent upon these herd fease agreements supplying raw milk, Specifically, in June, 2004
SRR | ool cave his Indiana regulatory contact a copy of his raw milk herd lease
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agreement, und that regulator told [P turn that he had provided a copy ol the agreement to
the PDA interstate tank truck inspector.

Considerations in Federal Laws Underlying the Regulation
food Drug and Cosmetic Ace 21 USC 3210hj

Even if, contrary to the above-cited pravisions of Federal/T DA interpretive guidance and
administrative practice in—speciﬁc case, and even if, contrary to Michigan and Indiana law
and administrative practices,’ieasc arrangement were construed to be a sale, it would still
fall outside of FDA's jurisdiction under the regulation (21 CFR 1240613

Notwithstanding. that the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act defines “interstate commerce” in
2L USC 321D, the word “commerce” itself is not defined in the Act  In the absence of such a
definition, which is central to the distinction here in question {e g, is there here a lease or a sale,
and arc either or both subsumed in “commerce™), state law would apply under Frie Rafroad v
fompkins. 1n 2006 an Indiana Appellate Court adopted the definition of “commerce” contained
in Black s Law Dictionary: “the exchange of goods, productions. or property of any kind; the
buying, sclling. and exchanging of articles ™ [Rice v AHen County Plan Com n, 852 N F 2d 591 ]
[£x.J] S icasc arrangement would fall outside this definition. There is no sale or exchange
of the milk here because the co-op members already have title to the milk by virtue of their herd-
lease cow share agreement with{iJifl through the co-ops.

Funthermore, Ei’_ fease were ultimately found to be interstate commerce, then enforcing 21
CER 124061 against YNNI ««o.ld be a violation of his Fifth Amendment
substantive due process rights  In Fillage of Ewclid v Ambler Realty Co, 272 U8 365 (1920),
the Supreme Court held that a law was a viclation of substantive due process it it was “clearly
arbitrary and unreasonable, having no substantial relation to the public health, safety. morals o
general weltare © {Id p 395] Fuclid was recently cited for its due process precedent by the
Court o Lingle v Chevron 125 4 Inc 544 118 828, 5329 (2005). [Ex K]

Fnforcement action agains{ would be arbitrary because of the dairy’s exemplary track
record for producing clean, sanitary milk. Indeed, this record of quality was a central
determining factor in N selection of Y hen Sl nterviewed dairies in 2004 preparatory
o identiving a raw milk supplier with whon fo enter into a lease WhendJilIP was o licensed
Grade A dairy, its raw milk standard plate counts consistently tested below the Pasteurized Milk
Ordinance ("PMO™} Himit for milk that had been pastewrized {20,600 SPCY. The PMO is the
modet governing docwment for interstate shipments of milk for human consumption,

The “Headrick Paper on the Epideniiology of Raw Milk-Associated Foodbome Nliness
Qutbreaks™ reported that 38 out of the 46 1aw mitk-associated foodborme illness outbreaks found
from 1973 10 1992, the implicated milk was preduced at a commercial dairy. [Fx L] While a
Grade A licensee, [ was not @ commercial dairv. Given the overwhelming evidence in the
Headrick study {c.g |, 83% ot raw milk outbreaks, which in total averaged only slightly more than
two per year, were in commercial dairies not in small family operated farms), there is no
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compelling reason now to focus on JJ or any other vperation which by its track record shows
itsell to be a model of healthy cleandiness ' In other words. the administrative decisions by both
the Indiana and FDA officials in permitting I rass milk operations to move forward, were
vindicated both prospectively in practice and retrospectively under the epidemiological study of
these previous periods. Hence, the | DA's newly commenced “one-size fits all” approach to raw
milk enforcement arbitrarily discriminates against a elean farm like N

Further, enforcement action against @M has “no substantial relation to the public health, safery,
morals or general welfare” Such an enforcement action is not protecting the public health:
rather. it is interfering with the liberty of the co-ops’ members to do what they believe best for
the health of themselves and their families

Specitically. there is no conclusive evidence that any of the very few foodbormne iilnesses
associated with the consumption of raw milk has been secondarily transmitted to someone who
did not consume the raw milk linked to the illness  Mead’s definitive paper on foodborne
tinesses does not even mention the possibility of secondary transmission. [Ex M) Mor hidity
Mortality Weekly Report mentions only one case in which CDC hypothesized there was a
secondary transmission of foodborne illress caused by the initial consumption of raw milk. In
that case CDC provided no proaf 10 support their claim * [Ex N} In tables pubiished for several
vears in the mid-1990"s, CDC reported single-digit numbers of outbreaks and small numbers of
total cases attributable to milk (including raw milk), consistently reporting milk’s portion of
food-borne discases as less than 19 (and usuaily less than 0 3%%) for both number of outbreaks
and numbers of cases, with no deaths, for the years 1993, 1994, 1993 1996 and 1997, [Ex O]

Again, in the absence of any compelling epidemiological Ficts. the consumption of taw milk
supplied from ethical and clean operations such as W has not demonstrated any signs of
incipient danger to the public health. Locally produced raw milk, supplied by farmers known to
the consumer, have an inherent safety mechanism: if there’s a problem with the milk. the
farmer’s phone tings The testimonials gathered from 237 co-op members (discussed at more
length below) include literally no mention of any sickness or other quality problem with any of
SR . nilk or other dairy products

Commurticable Disease (42 USC 264)

‘the other principal statutory foundation for 21 CFR 1240 61 was 42 USC 264 the statute
regulating communicable discases. effectively classifying raw milk with obvioush dangerous
and notorious communicable diseases such as cholera, sutallpox, and the ebola virus (among
others. as specified in Executive Order 12432, contained in 42 USC 264} We submit, it was an
overreach o promulgate this regulation on the basis of the povernment’s power 1o regulate such
communicable diseases  [Ex. P|

* In passing, the Headrick Paper begs the question of whether this and similar studies of the danger of raw milk
cited by FEYA In its various communications. are based on raw milk abtained from cows in confinement dairy
operations which are sot munaged to eliminate the need for pastenrization

* Again, the UDC report does not make clear, whether or not the taw milk in these cases was obtained from cons
ranaged to prechude the need for pasteurization
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Phe regulation banning raw milk in interstaie commerce is found in part 1240 of Tide 21 CIR
{Control of Communicable Discases). subpart 1) (Specific Administrative Decisions Regarding
interstate Shipments). In addition to the ban on raw mitk. the other regulations under subpart [
are titled as follows:

1240 60 Moluscan shellfish (regulation does not ban interstate shipment)
124062 Turtles mtrastate and interstate requirements

124063 African rodents and other animals that may carry the monkey pox virus
124065 Psittacing birds

123075 Garbage

Indight of the above regulations, it seems out of place to ban a food that has benefited the health
of so many and that was the cause (83% in commercial dairies) of only shightly more than two
outbreaks per year of foodbore illnesses from 1973 to 1992 Likewise. it scems out of place to
issue & regulation banning raw milk interstase under the authority granted by 42 USC 264 in Hyght
of the communicable diseases listed in that siatute. For example, in a case involving the
interstate sale of tartles decided in 1977, the court cited the pervasive and persistent infection
{over 50% reinfection rate) of turtles with sefmanefla as persuasive of the need to regulaic the
creatures in interstate commierce. {Ex Q] Raw milk offers no such compelling risk, and the
epidemiology and J track record both attest to this.

Again, although for the above reasons we would urge the FDA to re-examine the foundations of
2P CFR 1240.61 ) we nevertheless contend, particularly in Hight of the inconsistent interpretation
and enforcement positions taken by FIIA and state regulators, specifically against IR that
continued enforcement in this matter would clearly be violative of GRS
constitutionally protected rights to due process and liberty and property under the Fifth
Amendrnent, as well as violative of the co-op members” right to liberty and property under the
Fifih Amendment.

THE SCIENCE AND THE OPINIONS

In addition te the foregeing CDC and other data, we are compelled to address the FDA's regular
assertions that raw mitk is dangerous and has no proven nutritional offsetting benefits. It is
axiomatic that no member of [l ot the other coops would knowingly drink unpasteurized milk
trom a conventional dairy which is not managed to climinate the need for pasteurization. As

noted above, (NG e ations and milk are exemplary in their cleanliness.

Individuals” reports of the benetits of raw milk are apparently scotled-at by the FDA, as recently
as in its March 1, 2007 release where it stated flafly: “Research has shown that these claims are
myths " [Ex B] Well, at least raw milk advocates weren't called ignorant peasants! We would
certainly like to read some of this unspecified research Most of the attachments to the March |
release on the topic of (fack of) raw milk benefits were repetitive internal Agency assertions
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We have previously furnished you with 232 testimonials concerning the benefits which
individuals perceive in consuming raw milk . {Not supplicd again due o their volume: Tally
Sheet Ex. R} Many of these cite persuasive individual cases of nutrition-based medical problems
which were reversed or ameliorated due 1o consumption of raw mitk A number of these
testimonials were written by doctors and other health professionals. not to mention professionals
i other fields who are not wont to throw words around carelessly. Nearly 50% of the total 232
teported an improvement in their health in general terms, and 43 (nearly 2090) reported quite
speeific experiences in being able (o consume raw milk after (for yewrs in many cases) being
unable to drink pasteurized milk. At some level, "ancedotal” evidence transforms by its weight
and focus into something more persuasive. Certainly the individuals who care passionately
about their health, or the health of children (30% mentioned concern for children or
grandchildren), believe raw milk is vitally important for future gencrations: {vou heard our cliemt
express this exact sentiment when we met on March 63 Finally, the single largest concern
expressed by respondents (63%) was to be eble freely to choose the foods they wished 1o eat.
These feelings run deep and strong, and the Agency needs to listen to them

Finally, contrary to the Agency s assertions, there are studies which demonstrate the benefits of
raw mitk. We refer vou 1o the abstract of a recent study published in the Jowrnal of Allergy and
Clindeal Iomurology where 4700 children were studied and it was concluded that raw milk
provided a 40% reduction in incidences of eczema and a 10% reduction in hay fever [1d. Vol
T17. tssue 6, Pages 1374-1381 (June, 2006) [Ex 8] and, although not a study of raw milk, there
were dramatic results recently reported in the journal Fuman Reproduction where the awthors
conchuded, “high intake of low-fat dairy foods may increase the risk of anovutatory infertility
whereas intake of high-fat dairy foods may decrease this risk ™ [Id, A Prospective Study of
Dairy Foods Intake and Anovulatory Infertility™, pages 1-8 (20073 [Ex T} Given the media
attention to a subject of such emotion and wrgencey (starting with a New York Times “Health”
section article) [Ex UJ, it won't take a leap of logie for women suffering infertility, who are also
intolerant of pasteurized mitk (nearly 26% of the population in cur testimonials), to consider
strongly tying a litde raw mitk - We suggest an infertility study utilizing raw milk would
produce even more dramatic resulss

[ FDA s sruly mterested in the public health, it should take the opportunity 1o design and
ymplement research (o explore the hypothesis, suggested in the testimonials and in such emerging
studies, that nutritional interventions such as raw milk can provide cure (rather than just
symplomatic reliet) for illnesses such as eczema, asthma and hay fever tand perhaps others) as
well as solve the riddle of widespread imolerance to pasteurized milk, which the Cengress has
recognized with the passage of legislation such as the Food Allergen Labeling and Consumer
Protection Act (Public Law 108-202 of 2004)

CONCLUSHON

For the reasons advanced above, the Agency should withdraw its Warning Letter and refrain
from further enforcement against JRRERE YQRENGCGNENNNNg o c three co-ops
contracting with JJJ The herd lease/cow share contracts are not circumventions of Taw. but
rather are in comphance with applicable law, entered into by persons knowledgeable concerning
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the demonstrably smalt risks which they choose 10 assume in exchange for substantial perceived
benefits.  We understand the Agency’s concern with the potential for widespread abandonment
of pasteurization standards for the public at large This concern need not extend to the small
fealm of private contractual cow share/herd lease arrangements among consenting adults We
submnit that the FIIA has many greater priorities in its long list of regulatory responsibilities. than
attempting to enforce rules which are bath unnecessary and arguably counterproductive to some
real possibilities for improved health

‘the FDA's inconsistent administrative history {e.g . its historic and current description of its
mandate as applying to sales, as opposed to the case at hand) concerning enforcement against
cow share arrangements, and indeed its historic reticence to devote resources to this area, should
not now be turned against ARSI o1 the basis of administrative whim or preference or
worse. Hhis is not to mention the legal questions discussed above both in state law and under the
enabling federal statutes  Further action against our client would be the essence of
discriminatory, harassing law enforcement and must not oceur

We appreciate this opportunity 1 share our response 10 FIDA's concerns in this matter, and we
trust that we may expect the Agency’s comruitment, as requested above. to withdraw its Warning
Letter and to discontinue further seeuting of I operations and its herd lease/cow share
arrangements . Would you please send any response directly to (S ——_—_—_—_—u. i: 0 S mail and
send copdes 1o the undersigned.

Thank vou

Very troly yours,

Stephen 1. Bemis, Py, Peter D). Kenpedy, Isg
Michigan Bar P-31599 G117A Midaight Pass Road
Sarasota, Florida 34242
Fel: 941-349-4984
Fax: 941.312-0654
e-raails glfestmprsiocanthiink net

STRdr
Enclosures
oo Honorable Carl Levin, United Staies Senate
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICED S Heath Senace

Y 1‘\‘,8 Fage ang Do Adoumatraton

e

23003 R

Prear S

This lettor s 10 response 1o the a\i‘érﬂh 22007 lener subminted o FDA by vour altarney, Stephen T B: NS {opy
attached). In the lemer Mr Bemis reguested that FDA review the response 1o Warning Lelter 2007 D00
submiited on vour behalf My Bumb zf,qumz«,d DA resemnd the Warning 1etier and ferminate f‘mzimr
entorcement action aganst vou, WTRGYEEERENNGE - 5 <o 0ps whe oo wm saw unpasteurized mitk
praducts. The lecer did not adshress 1he mishes widing charge cited in the Warning Letler  The letter and package of
dacumenis provided by Me Bemis were forwarded o FRA Ceoter for Food Safaty and Nuwition (CFSANG o

rey oW

CESAN bas reviewed the material sulrnitied by Mr Benus on behail of SENSNINSSENENNNR, | (ound the written
sespanse o be madeguate The response Tl to laclude the speciiic steps that your firm wilf take or has iaken to
correct the violations 1 is noted that vour response refutes FOA’S position that “herd feasing”™ o customens o
neighboring wiates ca be considered Minwrstme commerce FDA does not agree with this position In addition.
FIA does ot suppent reseinding the Warning L euer or terminating any foflow up inspections and enforcement

action

Ay pesponse fo this lstier should be dregted 10 JudBh A Fankowski, Compliancs Qe al the abone lenerhaad
address 1fvou have any questions regarding any msues i this letter please contact My Jankowskr at 313395
§173

Sincerely,

£
Ty £ ijs‘z - .{a'..\'_im
/”'J e e
4 . -

Judith A Jankowski
Compliance Officer

Attachment: ads

s Stephen | Bemus, Bsyuie
1001 Van Born Road
avios Michigan 281R0
Pewr 0 Kennedv, Cseaire T o
G4 17A Mudnight Pass Raad
Sarpseta Florids 342472
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STEPHLN T BEMIS
Attorney at [ aw
28601 Vas Bom Hoad
Pavior Nhchigan 383130
SPOT8Y Q60

Scptember 26, 2007

Mu Judith A Jankowsk

Compiionee Officer

Depurunent of Health and Human Services
138 Food and Dmg Administiation

300 Rover Place

Surte 3900

Drerront, Machigan 483067

BE Waming Letrer 200707 06

Drear Ms Jankowski-

W are mn recapt of your fetter dated Septeruber 17, 2007 concerning S TEGG_G.

stlgaiion
Dwaonld ke w speak with you concerning this but understend that vous will not reuen (o
the office unid October 15 2007 Your colleague (o whom vou referred calls in vony ahsence)

st §should address myself o you when you return

Conszquently, upon your return, ©widl give you 2 call, and will plan as well to prosid
you additonal response connerning this mattzar

Please coptact me with any queshoens Thank veu

Vers truly yours,
¥

3 fm

S1Badr

Peter Konneedy, Tsg,

e
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STEPHEN T BEMIS
Attorney at. Law
21001 Van Born Road
Tavior, Michipan 48180
JEFUE36D

October 13 2007

Ms hudith A Jankowsky

Compliance Oftficer

Diepartment of Health and Human Services
(7S Food and Dy Adrumstration

06 River Place

Suite 59

Detreit, Machigan 48207

Reo Waming Letier 2007 D106

Dyear Ms. Jankowsks:

. R " - - e &
This letter s in further response to yours of September 17, _gl}ﬂﬁ addressed (o

Owr chient has decided to forepo additional discussion with the Agency
concerning the merits of the varions argoments expressed in our recent exchange of
correspondence

We propose lubehng comphiant with 21 CEFR 301 | et seq, a deadt sample of which
i3 enclosed  This label would be imprinted on the gallon jug’s cap closuse

Thank vou for vour kisd assistancs m s matier

Very truly vowrs

S18dr
Enciosure
co. (R

Pater Kennedy, Flsg
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STERPHENT. BEMIS
&it()mm at Law
S Van Hore Rood

Panlor, Michgan 1I818G
SLATRA60

March 200 2008

VIA CERTIFIED MATL

€
My Judith A Jankowskd 2, 1 Q.Vr {{g[a? &
R o 2 -39 ARG
Comphance Officer 213 e
Department of Health and Human Service i 4 é:é ) ‘
U8 Food and Drug Admanisimation (f"A [J
Yo % {3 5 olie!
e Raver Place (

e 3900
Vretrost Michngan 43207

oo Wamng Letter 2007101 .0 .

A

¥
¢

Trear My lankowsk

Confirming the detathad message left in your voice mas! today . L are writing o follew up
o7t v nost recent correspondence 1o vou dated October 13, 204/ (copy attachedy

AL that timne 1 proposed a forms of abeling for SEERNGGENNGGGGEE > «ilk shipments
wizich would bring by tte compliange with 21 CFR 5G1 T et seg This proposal was made i
good faith response o the repeated references made in both of FDA's letters o him oo the topo
both of which made explicit reference © percrived Inbeling deficiencics

Since my last commupucation, we have heard sothing funther from your office 1 am now
apprissd ot other achions spparently being taken by PDA in other parts of the eountryv
£O1 ;zmin;«; suntlar inferstate srinutions, with possible enforcement mitont

Uonsequently, we wish o obtain explcit cdanfication from FDA concermmg the
appropriateness of the continmzd use of the labels a3 proposed in my last correspondence

Phank you svery much

Verv trulv vours,

CrBedr ;LZ%V ' W

oot

'

Poter Ker medy Fug
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From: Steve Bemis <stbemis@charter net>
Subject: ASSERTION OF FIFTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS AND SETTLEMENT
PROPOSAL
Date: March 25, 2010 12:19:22 PM EDT
Tor melissa.mendoza@fda hhs.gov, steven barber@fda hhs gov,
tina. pawlowski@fda hhs gov
Beer FTCLDF President Pete Kennedy - <pete@ftcldf org>, "David Cox G *
<dcoxiaw@columbus 1T com>

Dear Ms. Mendoza, Mr. Barber and Ms. Pawlowski - Thank you for the opportunit
to discuss FDA's request for an inspection of the (GGG f:cility, d

owner W at

Confirming our conversation earlier this morning, you had indicated the FDA was
following up on its two visits to W this past Tuesday, and FDA has so far,
determined that it was not a "refusal” for JJjENNGEGN (c assert his Fifth
Amendment right with respect to the inspection. In our second conversation
concluded in recent minutes, Ms. Mendoza advised me that she is aware of no
ongoing criminal investigation, that 388 and YNNG 2rc not a target, but
that she would check further in the Agency concerning my question as to whether
FDA is going further than the civil compliance side which you folks are
administering.

As we discussed, in the circumstances (and in view of some three years of non-
response from FDA concerning the llB situation), my client has a high level of
concern if he were to waive his Fifth Amendment rights and permit the inspection.
As you know, it is our position that the herd lease/cow share arrangements under
which YR operates are outside FDA jurisdiction since there are no "sales" in
interstate commerce. | fully appreciate that we differ in this regard However,
should additional charges be brought under the Agency's authority, Sl will need
to have all its available defenses, including that of the Fifth Amendment.

We discussed as well my client's willingness to agree to discontinue the milk
shipments which appear to be the basis of FDA's assertion of jurisdiction, possibly
including, on a forward-looking basis, facility inspections to verify that the activity
which would invoke FDA jurisdiction is no longer occurring. We offer this method
of settdernent in tieu of a current inspection, so that my client would have the
assurance of settling the past without the risk of further legal exposure.

As you can appreciate, in view of this proposal to settle, any current inspection
would appear to be calculated not to achieve the goal of stopping interstate
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shipping, but would appear to point only to the goal of creating other legal risks
for S Hence if we cannot agree to a settlement, 'Sl has little choice but to
assert its Fifth Amendment rights going forward, together with all other available
fegal defenses.

You indicated that you would discuss these matters further with your clients
Please contact me this afternoon or tomorrow via cellphone if necessary:
734.646.6091

Thank you for your courtesies and the ability to discuss these matters frankly.
Very truly yours,

Stephen Bemis, Esq.

6500 Jennings Road v

Ann Arbor, Ml 48105
P-31599 Michigan
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From: "Mendoza, Melissa" <Melissa Mendoza@1tda hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: ASSERTION OF FIFTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS AND SETTLEMENT
PROPOSAL
Date: March 26, 2010 3:2558 PM EDT
To: "Steve Bemis" «stbemis@charter net>
Ce: "Barber, Steven" <Steven Barber@tda hhs.gov>, "Pawlowski. Tina M"
<Tina Pawlowski@{da hhs.gov>

Mr. Bemis:

Thank you for your email. As we have discussed, your client, i,
?refused to allow FDA investigators to inspect the JiGEG_—G_—_—_—_—

! facility on March 23, 2010. Wi referred the investigators to
vou and explained that he would allow an inspection if you so advised. Yesterday
merning during our telephone conversation, | explained FDA's authority to inspect
the facility pursuant to 21 US.C. § 374(a), and | asked you whether you would
advise your client to permit FDA to inspect the Yl facility or whether FDA would
need to involve the court At this point, FDA understands that you have not
advised, and do not intend to advise, your client to permit such an inspection. If
this is a misunderstanding, and your client will permit an FDA inspection without
court intervention, please confirm this as soon as possible.

I am confused about your references to the Fifth Amendment, because FDA is not
seeking to interrogate your client; rather, the agency seeks to enter and inspect
the YR facility to determine whether your client has violated and/or is violating
the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act ("FDCA") and/or the Public Health
Service Act ("PHSA"). If violations are found, FDA could initiate regulatory
enforcement actions.

In our second telephone conversation yesterday, you asked whether your client
was the subject of a criminal investigation. | told you that { am not aware of an
ongoing criminal investigation and would not be able to disclose such
information. Please keep in mind that | cannot make representations on behalf of
FDA or any other federal or state agency in this regard.

We acknowledge your client’s offer 1o enter into a legally binding agreement, or
consent decree entered by the court, which would provide that your client
permanently discontinue conduct violative of the FDCA and PHSA. FDA would
consider entering into a consent decrae if it includes all of the relief that the
agency believes is necessary. Among other standard provisions, a decree would
restrain and enjoin your client from directly and/or indirectly introducing or
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delivering raw milk or raw milk preducts in interstate commerce, and require your
client to shut down his facility until he can demonstrate compliance with the
FDCA and PHSA, maintain records regarding the sale andfor distribution of all raw
milk or raw milk products, revise the labeling of such products, and permit FDA
to inspect{llll® facility to assure ongoing compliance with the FDCA and PHSA.
But please understand that FDA cannot, in the context of such a decree or
otherwise, make commitments regarding any additional legal action, on its own
belief or that of other federal or state agencies.

If your client is interested in resolving this matter through a consent decree,
please contact me. in the meantime, however, please let me know by close of
business today whether @i will permit FDA investigators to conduct an
inspection of QR facility. We consider this to be a time-sensitive public health
matter. . ‘

+ -

I can be reached at (301) 827-4803.
Thank you for speaking to us yesterday.
Melissa Mendoza

- = riginal Message-----
From: Steve Bemis [mailto:sthemis@charter.net]
Sent: Thursday, March 25, 2010 12:19 PM
To: Mendoza, Melissa; Barber, Steven; Pawlowski, Tina M
Subject: ASSERTION OF FIFTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS AND SETTLEMENT PROPOSAL

neeres (56F ATT T



Case 5:10-cv-04018-MWB Document 15-4 Filed 06/14/10 Page 39 of 44

ATTACHMENT K



Case 5:10-cv-04018-MWB Document 15-4 Filed 06/14/10 Page 40 of 44

ATT "k"

From: Steve Bemis <sthemis@charter net>
Subjecit: RE: ASSERTION OF FIFTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS AND SETTLEMENT
PROPOSAL
f2ate: March 26, 2010 4:51:30 PM EDT
for "Mendoza, Melissa" <Meiissa Mendoza@fda hhs gov>
Ce: "Pawlowski, Tina M" <Tina Pawlowski@fda hhs gov>, "Barber, Steven"
<Steven Barber@fda hhs.gov>

Dear Ms Mendoza;

Unfortunately, | have had only a short time to read and evaluate your memo of a
few hours ago (received while | was at lunch and just opened), and given the
timing of its transmission, it is unreasonable to set a deadline of less than two
hours for our response. As | mentioned earlier, my client i does not
have normal ready access to a telephone, and internet access does not exist. |
have had a message for him to call me, on another issue, for more than an hour
and a half and that call has not been returned, so counselling him vet this
afternoon to meet your deadline is not possible. As well, I wish to consult with
other lawyers concerning aspects of your communication. In the circumstances, |
will not be able to respond until the close of business Monday.

That said, 1 wish to clarify, that in our first call yesterday morning | said my
recommendation might be that SR ot permit the inspection, but the
purpose of our discussion was for us to evaluate your position, and for you to
evaluate our proposal for a consent agreement which | first suggested. In that
first call you explicitly said the FDA did not consider my client's two assertions of
the need for a search warrant to be refusals, nor would you do so until and unless
a third attempt for an inspection met with the same response. | believe we are
now discussing that third request.

Second, with all due respect, it is clear that production of documents and other
physical things, the taking of samples and indeed the inspection itself woud
clearly raise Fifth Amendment issues (e.g., not limited to speech or testimoney, as
you suggest) where, as here, we argue the Agency's lack of jurisdiction due to the
private nature of the underlying agreements, the legal effect of which is that there
is no "sale” in interstate commerce as defined in the FDCA, and hence no
jurisdiction for the FDA. Clearly, if it comes to pass that we cannot agree on a
satisfactory resolution of potential civil and criminal risks to [SRNRGGG_S - |
said earlier, his rights under the Fifth Amendment will need to remain intact. It is
for this reason that we view the Fifth as potentially critical for the preservation of
his rights.
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Our consideration of these matters is of course complicated by the Agency's
apparent paosition that it is willing to offer no relief from any other enforcement
actions. We believe that the offer of a voluntary resolution through agreement
should afford significant enticement for the Agency's more favorable
consideration of these aspects of a potential settlement. We will need to consider
this further in consultation with the client, among other issues.

Finally, it would be helpful for any further discussion if you would elaborate on
what you may consider the proper scope of an inspection. The FDA personnel,
when they visited Tuesday, made it clear to (NN that they would

inspect records. As { read 21 U.S.C. 374{a), farms are exempted from records

inspection,

We continue to look forward to discussing this matter with you during the day
Monday. ;

Thank you.

Steve Bemis

+ '" b ot
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From: Steve Bemis <sthemis@charter net>
Subiect: REQUEST FOR INSPECTION
Datz: March 28, 2010 4:38:47 PMEDT
To: melissa mendoza@tda hhs gov, steven barber@fda hhs gov,
tina pawlowski@fda hhs gov
scc: FTCLDF President Pete Kennedy - <pete@ficldf org>, "David Cox G "
<dcoxlaw@columbus rr.com>, rdklein <rdklein@net-link net>

Dear Ms. Mendoza, Mr. Barber and Ms. Pawlowski: Ar the time we exchanged
emails on Friday, | was not aware (although | assume that you were) of the report
of campylobacter positives of some kind in milk which may have come from

(NN o!lowing our email exchange

Friday afternoon, and prior to learning of these latest reported tests, | had an

opportunity to speak further with JERERENEE_

We continue to dispute the jurisdiction of the FDA over the private arrangements

under which YNGR has supplied raw mitk.

However, | am authorized to notify you that effective immediately,
S has terminated all supply of raw milk and raw milk products out of the state
of Indiana.

If you feel in these circumstances that you still need an investigation of il
SR urider the authority of 21 U.S.C. 374(a), upon FDA's proper
presentation of credentials and notification, (|| | NGGNG_G_GE hos authorized me to
say that he will not refuse such an inspection.

Please contact me at your earliest convenience so that we may discuss details of
such an inspection.

Thank you.

Stephen Bemis, Esqg.
(cell} 734 646 6091
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I hereby certify that on June 14, 2010, I electronically filed the foregoing with the
Cletk of Court using the CM/ECF system that will send notification of such filings(s) to

the following:

MARTHA A FAGG

Assistant United States Attorney
600 4th Street, Suite 670

Sioux City, IA 51101
712-255-6011

712-252-2034 (fax)
martha.fagg@usdoj.gov
usao.ian-civ-de-sc@usdoi.gov

ROGER GURAL

T1ial Attorney

Office of Consumer Litigation
Department of Justice

Civil Division

P O. Box 386

Washington, D.C. 20044
202-307-0174

202-514-8742 (fax)
roger.gural@usdoj.gov

/s/ David G. Cox
David G. Cox




